ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 28, 2014
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 23
Proclaimng Mrch 27, 2014, as Good Friday Earthquake
Renenbr ance Day.

- MOVED CSHIR 23(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 255
"An Act relating to unmanned aircraft systens; and relating to
i mges captured by an unmanned aircraft system”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 23
SHORT TI TLE: GOOD FRI DAY EARTHQUAKE REMEMBRANCE DAY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H) STA

01/ 28/ 14 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 255

SHORT TITLE: UNMANNED Al RCRAFT SYSTEMS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HUGHES, H GG NS, THOVPSON, PRUI TT

01/ 21/ 14 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/17/ 14

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2014



01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H) STA, JUD
01/ 28/ 14 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JEFF TURNER, St aff

Representative Charisse Ml lett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HIR 23 on behal f of
Representative MIlett, sponsor.

CHUCK VOLANTI

A ynpi a, Washi ngt on

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as the instigator of the idea
behi nd HIR 23.

ROBERT "BUZZ" SCHER, Chair

Al aska Seism ¢ Hazards Safety Comm ssion (ASHSC)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 23.

DEAN DAWSON, State Archivi st

Al aska State Archives/Records & Information Managenent Service
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 255.

RCDNEY DI AL, Li eut enant

Di vision of Alaska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the inage retention
requi renents proposed in HB 255.

GREGORY WALKER, Director

Al aska Center for Unmanned Aircraft Systens Integration
University of Al aska, Fairbanks (UAF);

Member

Legi sl ative Task Force on Unnmanned Aircraft Systens

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 255.

LUKE HOPKI NS, Mayor

Fai rbanks North Star Borough (FNSB)
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 28, 2014



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 255.

ANNE CARPI NETI, Assistant Attorney General

Legal Services Section

Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law (DQOL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 255.

BARBARA JOHNSQN, Speci al Assi st ant

Mayor Luke Hopki ns

Fai rbanks North Star Borough (FNSB)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered sonme statistics regarding the
econoni ¢ devel opment opportunity of unmanned aircraft systens
during the hearing on HB 255.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:04:18 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Representatives Keller, Gattis,

| saacson, Hughes, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn were present at the
call to order.

HIR 23- GOOD FRI DAY EARTHQUAKE REMEMBRANCE DAY

8:05: 07 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESOLUTION NO. 23, Proclaimng Mrch 27, 2014, as Good
Friday Earthquake Renenbrance Day.

8: 05: 38 AM

JEFF TURNER, Staff, Representative Charisse Mllett, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HIR 23 on behalf of Representative
MIllett, sponsor. He stated that March 27, 2014, wll be the
fiftieth anniversary of the "Good Friday Earthquake," a 9.2
magni tude quake, which tore apart 50,000 square mles of
Sout hcentral Al aska, leveling entire communities and triggering
massi ve tsunami s that brought nore devastation to coastal areas.
He explained that the purpose of the proposed joint resolution
is not to highlight the earthquake itself, but to honor the
t housands of Al askans who put the needs of others before their
own, including first responders, nedical personnel, the Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2014



Arny and Air National Guards, the US. Arny Corps of Engineers,
government enpl oyees, and everyday Al askans. Those people
conducted search and rescue operations, provided nedical care
food, shelter, and the restoration of vital services and
infrastructure, and saved many |ives. He said the proposed
| egi sl ation woul d recogni ze how a great disaster brought out the
best of all Al askans.

MR. TURNER said the bill sponsor asks that the commttee support
HIR 23, so that it can be included in the events that wll be
marking the fiftieth anniversary of the earthquake in Anchorage
and ot her Southcentral communities. M. Turner noted that Chuck
Vol anti, one of the upcomng testifiers, is not only an Al aska
Air National Guard who brought the idea for the proposed joint
resolution to Representative MIllett, but also served at Kulis
Air National Guard Base during the earthquake and would be one
of the peopl e honored under HIR 23.

8:07:47 AM

CHAIR LYNN related that at the time of the earthquake, he was in
the US. Ar Force, on his way to be stationed in Kotzebue,
Al aska, and landed on route at Elnendorf Air Force Base for
Arctic Training. He recalled that "the place was still shaking
with all the aftershock,” and said, "You d be talking to
sonebody and all of a sudden everybody woul d be under the desk."
He said he saw the buildings on Fourth Avenue, where there was
al nost total devastation. He said it was a blessing [the
effects] were not worse, and he suggested that the proposed
joint legislation may be an appropriate one to consider.

8:08:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS said she renenbers "a |ot of great
Al askans hel ping other Al askans that were in need.” She said
she was age seven at the tinme of the earthquake and renenbers
her nother telling her that she would give sone of her clothes
and toys to children who |ost everything in Valdez. She said as
the oldest child in her famly, she was allowed to go with her
father to the power plant to help return the power to Anchorage,
and she saw [the destruction of] Fourth Avenue. She remarked
that Al askans put politics aside to help each other during an
energency situation.

8:10:17 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2014



CHAIR LYNN, in response, offered his understanding that at the
time of [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001], nenbers
of U S. Congress stood together and sang "God Bl ess Anerica."”

8:11: 02 AM

CHUCK VOLANTI indicated that the inspiration to bring the idea
for HIR 23 to the legislature was his love of Alaska, its
unparal |l el ed beauty and people, and his experience serving in
the Alaska Air National Guard. He continued as foll ows:

| believe the tine has conme to conmenorate the tragic

events of fifty vyears ago. | believe history
unwitten is history forgotten. This |egislation,
when passed, will ensure its rightful place in Al aska

state history.

On Good Friday, March 27, 1964, at 5:36 p.m, Al aska
was ravaged with by a 9.2 magnitude earthquake - the
| argest recorded earthquake in U S. history. It cast
a pall of death and destruction covering thousands of
square mles of pristine |andscapes and |asting over
four mnutes, where seconds seened |like hours. Wthin

an hour, | arrived at Kulis Air National Guard Base
Cy t hen pr oceeded W th flight di spat ch
responsi bilities, or gani zi ng flight crews,

coordinating the airlifts of supplies, equipnent, and
personnel, all of which was intended to alleviate the
suffering of many citizens.

Nothing of this magnitude has had nore inpact on

Al aska or its people; all were forever changed. The
towns of Valdez, Seward, Portage, G rdwod, and
Chenega Village were destroyed. Anchorage and the
Anchor age Bor ough suffered deadl y and severe
devast ati on. The Good Friday Earthquake destroyed

hundreds of dwellings and businesses and created
numerous |andslides, one of which cascaded several
residential blocks of Turnagain by the Sea onto the

mudfl ats of Turnagain Arm and Cook Inlet. The quake
and tsunam s, with no respect for borders or
boundari es, . continued a path of death and
destruction down the Pacific Coast all the way to
Crescent City, California. The people who were
di splaced and suffered great |oss nunber in the
t housands.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 28, 2014



It is time to recognize the quake's horrific inpact on
the state and the selfless rendering of humanitarian
aid by first responders represented by thousands of
Al askan people <comng from all wal ks of life
including countless mlitary personnel. In the face
of danger and uncertain circunstances, their display
of selflessness, courage, and conpassion proved the
difference for many lives, even their own, as one life
often affects another. The outcone of their efforts
i mpact ed not only their generati on, but t he
generations that would follow - even those yet to be
born. Their | egacy renmains intact.

As a former menber of the Alaska Air National CGuard, |
dedicate the efforts | have expended to those
mentioned in this resolution; for those who made the
ultimate sacrifice - true patriots and heroes and the
famlies they Ileft behind. [It is] tinme to pay
tribute and give nenorials of all the lost souls of
this tragic event, to acknow edge the thousands who
served, to honor their nenory, and to give them their
rightful place in Alaska state history.

8:14: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON thanked M. Volanti for his role in
bringing forward HIR 23 and for his service in the Ar Nationa
Guard and role in showing what that entity provides to the
country. He al so expressed thanks to the bill sponsor's staff.
He said he grew up in the Seattle, Wshington, area, and he
remenbers the trenors caused by earthquakes, in general. He
opi ned that honoring those who lost their lives and those who
sacrificed their tinme in the service of others is "fitting for
all Al askans." He pointed out that he was wearing a hat that
was made by Ms. Volanti in commenoration of the fiftieth
anniversary of +the Good Friday Earthquake. He stated his
support of HIR 23.

8.16: 05 AM
MR. VOLANTI indicated that [his role in bringing this proposed
legislation to light] has been a privilege. He enphasized, "

have felt very strongly about this for many years."

8:16: 18 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 28, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she is glad HIR 23 is being proposed
for the fiftieth anniversary of the earthquake instead of
waiting for the one hundredth, because those who would be
honored may still be alive now She said she thinks the
proposed joint resolution is a rem nder of how inportant it is
for communities to pull together. Further, she said HIR 23
underlines the issue of energency preparedness, which she said
is a passion of hers. She said the Departnment of Mlitary &
Veterans Affairs (DWA) has contacted her office, and she
offered her understanding that the state is going to be
conducting exercises in March, whereas exercises wll occur
nationally in Qctober. She acknow edged that there are people
who hel ped during the earthquake at a young age who, therefore,
are not yet seniors.

8:18: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER t hanked the bill sponsor for bringing the
joint resolution forward. He recounted that at the tinme of the
eart hquake, he was a high school student who l|ived in the
Turnagain area. He said the event pained him and he uses it as
a marker of when he becane an Al askan.

8:19: 20 AM

ROBERT "BUZZ" SCHER, Chair, Alaska Seismc Hazards Safety
Comm ssion (ASHSC), testified in support of HIR 23. He
enphasi zed the inportance of public education, awareness, and
preparedness as an appropriate and direct neans to mtigate the
eart hquake hazard [Al aska] faces. He said Alaska is one of the
nost seismcally active locales, not only in the nation, but

wor | dwi de. He reported that just |ast year, over 28,000
eart hquakes were instrunmented in the state, including over 40
that were over magnitude 5 or larger - the size at which an

eart hquake can do danage, subject to how close the earthquake
occurr ed.

8:22:31 AM

MR. SCHER said the commission fully supports HIR 23, but has
suggestions regarding its |language. First, he said although the
eart hquake goes by nmany nanes, including the Good Friday
Eart hquake, its formal nanme given by the U 'S. Departnent of
Ceol ogical Surveys is "The 1964 G eat Al aska Earthquake."™ Next,
he directed attention to "a comment about the area that was
affected,” on [page 1], line 4, and he said it is difficult to
capture how |large and significant the event was. He expl ai ned

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2014



that ground shaking was felt as far off as Barrow, it was felt
700-800 mles away from the epicenter in Prince WIIliam Sound

He then pointed out language in [lines 5 and 6], which nention
"the largest earthquake in the history of North Anerica.” He
said it would be nore accurate to say "the |argest instrunented
earthquake in North Anerica." He noted that it was also the
second | argest instrunmented earthquake in the world - ever. M.
Scher stated that the earthquake of 1964 was probably one of two
or three defining noments of Al aska, Al aska becomng a state
bei ng anot her. He said the earthquake went a long way in
provi ng geol ogic, engineering, and plate tectonic theories. I t
al so brought to light the need for better building codes and
| and use pl anni ng.

8:25: 09 AM

MR. SCHER recommended that the commttee consider changing the
proposed legislation to nmake March 17 an official day of
remenbrance in perpetuity, rather than acknow edging the day
just on its fiftieth anniversary.

8:25:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON reviewed M. Scher's aforenenti oned
anmendnent suggesti ons.

MR SCHER confirned those were his recomendati ons.
8:27:23 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:27 a.m to 8:29 a.m
8:29:22 AM

CHAIR LYNN said the commttee had a short conversation with M.
Turner during the at-ease.

8:29: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnment 1, to
proclaim March 27 Good Friday Earthquake Renenbrance Day in
perpetuity. There being no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1
was adopt ed.

8: 30: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2014



CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony.

8: 30: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HIR 23, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR 23(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

[ The committee revisited HIR 23 on 2/4/14.]

8:30: 51 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:31 a.m to 8:36 a.m

HB 255- UNVANNED Al RCRAFT SYSTEMS

8:35:52 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 255, "An Act relating to unmanned aircraft systens; and
relating to images captured by an unmanned aircraft system™

8:36:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES i ntroduced HB 255, as joint prinme sponsor.
She said the Legislative Task Force on Unmanned Aircraft Systens
was created to study the issue [of unmanned aircraft systens],
which is technology that wll be seen in a wide variety of uses.
She stated her nunber one concern is privacy. She said she also
considered the Fourth Anendnment as it relates to what governnent
agencies are allowed to use. Representative Hughes tal ked about
the benefits of harnessing unmanned aircraft use w thin Al aska
for search and rescue mssions, for nonitoring pipelines, and
for keeping watch for fires. She pointed out that with Al aska's
lack of roads, it nmakes sense to use unmanned aircraft to save
lives. Further, she indicated that the use of unmanned aircraft
is cost effective.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES acknow edged that there have been concerns
about the federal governnent's collecting of data over the |ast
few years, including the keeping of phone records; therefore
she said the task force spent nost of its tine focusing on the
i ssue of privacy. She indicated that there are two parts to the
i ssue, and each had to be addressed "under two pieces."” She
said today she is discussing the piece that sets the paraneters

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 28, 2014



for law enforcement use and allows the University of Alaska to
establish a training program for wunmanned aircraft systens
oper ati ons.

8:39: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES stated that under HB 255, |aw enforcenent
woul d be allowed to use unmanned aircraft to gather evidence for
a crimnal investigation, under the express terns of a search
warrant, as under AS 12.35, or in accordance with judicially

recogni zed exception to the warrant requirenent. She said the
proposed | egislation would set the paranmeters for the retention
of images, limting them to wuse in an investigation or

prosecution, for training purposes, or if the image is required
by federal or state |aw.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES brought attention to new |anguage [in
Section 1, beginning on page 1, line 13], which woul d: require
a | aw enforcenent agency to follow Federal Avi ati on
Adm ni stration (FAA) training certification requirenents;
require the chief admnistrative officer of a |aw enforcenent
agency to approve each use of an unmanned aircraft; require a
law enforcement agency to nmintain records, establish an
auditable flight record system and establish a nethod of
notifying the public, unless doing so would endanger a person's
safety; and require that a l|law enforcenent agency provide for
community involvenment in policy devel opnent. She nentioned
police departnments and state troopers around the country
adopting procedures and guidelines specifically addressing
privacy.

8:40: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said it is sonetinmes difficult to take a
bal anced approach, because the application of technology wll
sonetines go beyond current | aws. She noted that there were
peopl e available to testify.

8:42:17 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN nentioned [surveillance] caneras taking
phot os of people on the street and unmanned aircraft. He asked,

"Why are we concerned about one and not the other?"

8:43: 40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 28, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES opined that an unmanned aircraft, as a

tool, is in itself neither evil nor good; the intention of the
operator is key. She said the sane type of canmera can be used
on a nmanned aircraft as well as on an unmanned aircraft;

however, the unmanned aircraft is smaller, quieter, and able to
access places that a manned aircraft cannot, "and so there is a

concern. " She said there have been technol ogical advances,
whi ch extend the |ife of the batteries, so unmanned aircraft can
be up for extended periods of tine. She said the Fourth

Amendnent is part of the discussion when considering state use,
and the First Anmendnent discussion falls under commercial use

which is increasing. She related that there is an application
("app”) available that makes it possible to determne the
| ocation of drones and satellites. She said the drones being

considered for use in Alaska are smaller than the ones used by
the mlitary. She further related that the FAA does not allow

any weapons on unmanned aircraft. She indicated that that is
one of the safety features that will bring peace of mnd to the
publi c.

8:46: 20 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if the proposed legislation would affect a
private citizen who puts a video camera on a small aircraft.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES answered that HIR 22 would not affect that
type of hobby use; it pertains to training and |aw enforcenent

use. She said whether [renmpte controlled] aircraft is
considered a hobby nodel aircraft or an unmanned aircraft
depends on the "purpose of use.” She said hobby craft falls

under the guidelines of the Acadeny of Mddel Aeronautics (AMA).

CHAIR LYNN observed that many kinds of airplanes can be
controlled fromthe ground.

8:47: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER directed attention to page 2, |ines 24-26,
whi ch read as foll ows:

(b) In adopting procedures under (a) of this

section, a law enforcenent agency shall adopt the
| nt er nati onal Associ ati on of Chi ef s of Pol i ce,
Recommended Guidelines for the Use of Unmanned
Aircraft.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 28, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he would |ike the sponsor to describe
t he association. He nentioned the concerns of privacy, and
t hanked the sponsor for being willing to tackle the issue. I n
response to the chair, he pointed to a proposed requirenent
under HB 255, in paragraph (8), on page 2, lines 22-24, that the
| aw enforcenent agency would provide for public consideration,
and he questioned the directive for the agency to adopt [the
gui del i nes] . He said, "I still am wondering if the |[|aw
enforcenent agency shouldn't be required to take that into
consideration at the sanme level as community input, as opposed
to an international interest.” He said Alaska is unique that it
has a privacy clause in its constitution. He said, "There's a
directive in there that l|egislators are to set guidelines for
protecting the right to privacy. That's a tall order. I
personally think that we have not done enough."” He expl ai ned
that he has trouble not custom zing an international standard.

CHAI R LYNN sai d he shares Representative Keller's concern.
8:51:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES responded that she has "the sanme aversion

to anything international,"” but realized when she read the
docunent that "the guidelines would help protect Al askans.” She
said the commttee could choose which guidelines to adopt. She
related that the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) has adopted
the guidelines. She said |ocal governments may decide to enpl oy
unmanned aircraft in the future, and the task force was
concerned that they offer the sane privacy protections. She
noted that the issue of conmunity engagenment is addressed within
the guidelines and "being involved in the ... internal policy
[ maki ng] for the agencies is part of the process.” She deferred
to Lieutenant Rodney Dial to speak about the guidelines.

8:53: 01 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he has not read the guidelines. Notw thstanding
that, he surm sed that the guidelines are probably good, but he
is not sure the bill |anguage should state that "we nust | ook at
t hese gui delines.”

8:.53:26 AM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON thanked Representative Hughes for the
task force. He indicated that he had heard both cynical and

favorabl e response from his community. He said it is known that
Fort Wainwight nmay operate a mlitary drone called, "Gay

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 28, 2014



Eagle. " He said the mlitary has expressed concern about
finding a location where it can "inmediately access restricted
air space and not go over private residences, to allay the fear

of governnent snooping." He said there are people in the Salcha
area, on the eastern side of Fort Eielson, in the line of sight
of the restricted area. He enphasized the need to define the

public purpose, the training purpose, and the rmuni ci pal
ordi nance. He said that as a forner mayor, he can see the val ue
of using unmanned aircraft to check out downed utility Ilines

for exanple. He indicated that public purpose could include
parking, traffic control, animal control, speed traps, or
searching for "old girlfriends." He questioned what the

training purpose would be as it pertains to the retention of
i mages. He relayed that retired Brigadier General Beau Daily
(ph) had denonstrated how unnanned aircraft can be used to count
marine mammal s, wthout scaring the mammals. He reiterated that
concern over unmanned aircraft revolves around the private
citizen aspect.

8:57:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES offered her wunderstanding that the sane
i nstances when a nmanned aircraft would be pernmitted would apply
in use of wunmanned aircraft, and that it would not include
| ooking for old girlfriends. Regardi ng the capturing of inmages
of private citizens, she said case |law has shown that "if there

is a reasonable expectation of privacy in that ... situation,
then the inmages could not be retained and not be used and not be
adm ssible.” She deferred to state expert, Dean Dawson, for

further comment on the issue.

8:58: 36 AM

CHAIR LYNN remarked that he cannot inmagine flying unmanned
aircraft wi thout going over soneone's private residence - even
i nadvertently. Regarding the retention of inmages, he said the
i mges captured by surveillance canmeras in public areas are
retained for a period of tine. He said the bonbers at the

Boston Marathon were caught because of surveillance canera
i mges that were retained. He surm sed that those inmages could
have been taken by an unmanned aircraft.

8:59: 30 AM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON responded that the other side of this is

the public benefit. For exanple, he talked about "Google
Earth,” which captures "all sorts of stuff,” but is relied upon

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 28, 2014



by many as a "base nap." He questioned what the inpact would be
if a guideline is set different from that which is set for
sonething else, for exanple, a satellite or shopkeeper's store
[surveillance]. He questioned whether there would be unintended
consequences fromtrying to keep people from abusing the system
while using the unmanned aircraft for a good purpose, such as
seeking out forest fires in order to extinguish themfaster.

9:00: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES stated that there is econom c opportunity
for Alaska in this mtter, and she warned that being overly
restrictive with a tool could prevent it being harnessed for
beneficial uses. She said there are issues unique to unmanned
aircraft, such as their small size and quiet operation, and
that, plus |law enforcenent use, is the reason for HB 255.

9:01:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nentioned a farmer in North Dakota, who
was the first US. <citizen to be throwmm in jail for wusing
unmanned aircraft in response to a situation where |ivestock
crossed over property lines. Representative Keller said this is
a "real issue" that nust be addressed.

9:03: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES responded that that would not have played
out the sane in Al aska, because a search warrant woul d have been
required.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said it concerns him that the farner's
defense had been that "there was no warrant for the drone
surveill ance. "

9:04:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER directed attention the proposed exenption
on page 3, line 10, which would allow retention of inmages
captured by wunmanned aircraft if the imge is required "by
federal or state law or by nunicipal ordinance.” He asked for
exanpl es. He questioned what kind of state |aw would be passed
to allow those inages to be kept in the context of |aw
enf orcenent .

9:05: 22 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 28, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES i ndicated that investigation, prosecution

and training purposes are being addressed. She said the task
force did hear from DPS that current state retention policies do
provi de sone challenges for them and it's sonething that [the
task force] decided not to address, because "it inpacts nore

than this"; instead, it recommended the state |look at the
retention policies overall. She again deferred to Dean Dawson.
9:06: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER indicated the need to have clear
guidelines as to whether or not data can be retained, and he
guesti oned whether Alaska wants "a bl anket, w de open door for
any state law that cones along that says they can retain”
[ i mages] .

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES suggested that it would al so be benefici al
for the conmttee to hear from Li eutenant Rodney D al .

9:08: 18 AM

DEAN DAWSON, State Archivist, Al aska State Archives/Records &
| nfformati on Managenent Service, Departnent of Education and
Early Developnent (EED), said the state records retention
policies under AS 40.21 apply to the retention of inmages, and
the state's general adm nistrative retention schedul e prescribes
mandatory retention periods for all state records. He said, for

exanple, there is a 30-day retention for video footage. He
added, "And then, of course, the caveat is unless there is a
pending litigation, audit investigation, or |aw enforcenent
activity." He said EED would recomend that DPS inplenment the
records retention review and stipulate on its [records]
retention schedule - which the attorney general also signs -

exactly how |l ong those i mages woul d be ret ai ned.

MR. DAWSON said in a situation where the state and a |ocal
government have differing retention periods, the general premse
in a records and information managenent field is to retain for

the |ongest period of tine. He said those images would be
confidential and privileged, pending a Freedom of Information
Act request. He said DEED recommends that DPS prescribe

procedures through policy devel opnent [outlining] exactly what
the course of action for release of any potential privacy
docunents woul d be.

9:10:15 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 28, 2014



CHAI R LYNN asked M. Dawson to confirm that "these would be
for governnental ly acquired inmages."

MR. DAWSON responded yes.

CHAIR LYNN asked if the retention of inages recorded by private
entities, such as Gavel to Gavel and all television stations,
woul d be i npact ed.

MR. DAWSON answered no. He said the State Records Retention Act
applies only to state governnment entities. He said, "W provide
guidance to local governnments wupon request, but they're not
bound by our statute.”

9:11: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S questioned how current law differs for
manned aircraft.

MR. DAWSON replied, "I'm not aware of any distinguishing
parameter manned ... [vis-a-vis] unmanned.”
9:11: 27 AM

MR. DAWSBQON, in response to Representative |saacson, expounded
upon his previous statenment regarding |ocal governnents, by
explaining that the state consults and provides a general
retention schedule to |ocal governnents, 95 percent of which
foll ow t he schedul e.

9:12:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES echoed that the record retention policy
pertains only to records required by state departnents.

9:12: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON ventured that nunicipalities defer to
the aforenentioned guidelines, because the archivists have
al ready thought through all the issues.

MR. DAWSON said yes, and added, "In fact, we solicit the clerk's
i nput for our retention schedules.” In response to a followup
guestion, he said generally speaking, the departnment does not
engage the public in the devel opnent of its retention schedul es.

9:13: 23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 28, 2014



RCDNEY DI AL, Lieutenant, Division of Al aska State Troopers,
Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), stated that the Alaska State
Troopers agency has no concerns regarding the inmage retention
requi renents proposed in HB 255 and believes they strike the
ri ght bal ance between privacy concerns and the operational needs
of the departnent.

9:14: 00 AM

GRECORY WALKER, Chief Technology O ficer, Al aska Center for
Unmanned Aircraft Systens Integration (ACUASI), University of
Al aska, Fairbanks (UAF); Menber, Legislative Task Force on
Unmanned Aircraft Systens, relayed that he started the unmanned
aircraft program at UAF ten years ago and still leads it froma
techni cal perspective today. He said unmanned aircraft systens
operations are used to observe wildlife, oil and gas operations,
and climate change, and for energency response.

MR. WALKER said there really is no new technology to consider;

it is just a matter of how the technology for surveillance is
bei ng enpl oyed. For exanple, he said there are dashboard
canmeras in today's public vehicles that record imgery, and how
those images are wused is an ongoing concern involving
consideration of retention length and the possible need for
search warrants. He said he is part of the progressive task
force, which is trying to protect Al askans' constitutiona

rights for privacy, while at the sane tine putting out the
nessage that Al aska is open for business with regard to unmanned
aircraft technology, which can help in terns of the state's
climate diversity and |large |and masses. M. Wl ker concl uded
by stating that the task force wanted to ensure there is a clear
position on public use of wunmanned aircraft and how other
agenci es manage the technol ogy.

9:17: 34 AM

LUKE HOPKI NS, Mayor, Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB), opined
that Section 1 of the bill is not only inportant to the FNSB,
but to the entire state, because it would give the University of
Al aska the ability to establish a training program in unnmanned
aircraft systens operations. He stated that this is inportant
to the state's econonic devel oprent. He said the University of
Al aska has been designated to be the lead in the FAA test site
for developing the ability for unmanned vehicles to be operated
in comercial air space at sone point in the future. He
enphasi zed the inportance of the University of Al aska to advance

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 28, 2014



research developnment and the wuse of technology to benefit
citizens with the safe use of unmanned aerial systens. He said
citizens demand that privacy and the transparency of |[|aw
enforcenment are upheld, which is why "the major piece of this
legislation is so inportant for our citizens, with the proposed
amendnents that should provide proper oversight wthin the
judicial paraneters of our |aw enforcenent agencies.”

9:19: 55 AM

MAYOR HOPKINS said the inportance of gathering information by a
|aw enforcement agency is understood, and the procedures
proposed under HB 255 "set forth a fair and reasonable activity
concerning | aw enforcenent oversight."” He warned against |o0sing
the aspect of the economic developnent of unmanned aerial
syst ens. He said he thinks the task force "has done incredible
wor k on establishing those."

MAYOR HOPKINS stated that as mayor, he understands Section 4,
which would anend Title 29 so that "a nmunicipality may not adopt
an ordi nance that permts the rel ease of inmages captured” by [an
unmanned aircraft systeni. He said he is certain that any
future assenblies wll understand: “It'1l be law" May or
Hopkins reiterated that there are nmany benefits that unmanned
aerial systenms can have for Alaska, and he asked the commttee
to keep in mnd, "Wiile we have to regulate, we also don't want
to regul ate out of existence this new technol ogy."

9:22: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noted that "this allows |aw enforcenent
applications,” but the FNSB is "second class" and has not been
given |aw enforcenent powers. Neverthel ess, he asked Mayor
Hopkins if he thinks the proposed legislation would help in
addressing issues related to the drug trade in outlying areas of
t he borough. He asked, "Do you have any particular concerns or
do you feel that this is being adequately addressed through
reference to these other statutes?"

VR. HOPKINS indicated that the borough is already in

communi cation with DPS s detachnent in the Interior. He said he
thinks what |aw enforcenent would be allowed to do and not
allowed to do is clear in the proposed |egislation. He echoed

Representative Hughes' remark that this is a starting point, and
changes can be nmade in the future.

9: 24: 45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 28, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that Section 29 nmakes a reference
back to a section of the law that is dealing with [|aw
enforcenent, and said he is trying to figure out "if there's any
inplication here of anything to do wth technology, data
collected, that's outside of that narrow .903."

9:25: 52 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES deferred to Anne Carpeneti .
9:26: 38 AM

ANNE CARPI NETI, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Services
Section, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law (DOL), to the
guestion from Representative Keller, said there are state
statutes that do put constraints on |aw enforcenent on retention
of evi dence. She said that in 2010, the legislature passed a
retention of evi dence | aw, whi ch requires, in homcide
i nvestigations, that the evidence be retained for up to 50 years
or the length of tinme the case is unsolved - whichever is
| onger. She said, for exanple, in some sexual assault cases

t he deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) has to be kept for as long as
the defendant is required to register as a sex offender, and if
that is sexual assault or sexual abuse in the first degree, that
is for the duration of his/her life. She said there are
statutes, and they bind nunicipal and state |aw enforcenent
agenci es.

9:28:31 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that he woul d keep public testinony open.

9:28:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON, regarding public purpose, training, and
muni ci pal ordi nance, asked Ms. Carpeneti, "What is currently on
t he books, and how does that ... play into this bill from [a]

| egal standpoi nt?"
9:29: 07 AM

M5. CARPENETI answered that generally law enforcenent keeps
records in an investigation as directed in statute and accordi ng
to the seriousness of the case. She stated that when the
| egi sl ature debated the issue of record retention, it tried to
adopt Jlaws that took into account the size of the [|aw

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 28, 2014



enforcenent agency and its ability to preserve evidence. She
said there is always tension between keeping the evidence and
returning it to the owner. She related that a bill passed | ast
session set up a procedure for a victimto be represented by the
Ofice of Victine' Rights to bring an action in case that victim
believes the police were retaining property that belonged to
hi m her unnecessarily. She noted that there is a provision in
law that allows a |aw enforcenent agency to take a cutting from
a sofa for purposes of collecting DNA She explained this is
hel pful for smaller agencies that may not have the ability to
store the entire sofa.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON recollected that [M. Dawson] had
testified that nunicipalities do not have to follow state
archi ving schedul es. He asked if nunicipal |aw enforcenent
officials have to follow the crimnal l|laws established by the
State of Al aska.

V5. CARPENETI answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON ventured, then, that whatever the
| egi sl ature does "on the state side" will govern "the nunicipa
side. "

M5. CARPENETI responded yes, if that is nmade clear in the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON directed attention to page 3, line 10,
which lists one of the exceptions wherein a |aw enforcenent
agency could retain imges as when the retention of the inmage is
required "by federal or state law or by municipal ordinance".
He asked, "At what point does nmunicipal ordinance have nore
wei ght than state law, in | aw enforcenent?"

M5. CARPENETI said she is not an expert in Title 29, but knows
there are provisions in Title 9 that say state |aw rules. She
said she could get back to Representative Isaacson wth an
answer .

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON suggested that if |aw enforcenent is the
purview of the state, then the commttee should probably clarify
t he boundari es of municipal ordi nance.

9:34: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there are sections of |aw that
govern non-|aw enforcenent governnental retention of inmages.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 28, 2014



9:34:49 AM

M5. CARPENETI replied that she is sure there are; she recalled
that M. Dawson had testified that there are standards for
retention of public records.

9:35:17 AM

BARBARA  JOHNSON, Speci al Assi st ant, May or Luke  Hopki ns,
Fai rbanks North Star Borough (FNSB), related that she had
attended several of the task force's neetings, where concerns
wer e hear d, ot her state's nmet hods wer e st udi ed, and
opportunities to learn from m ssteps were taken. She stated

"W have worked really hard on the econom c devel opnent side of
this industry.” She reported that an Association of Unmanned
Vehicle Systens international 2013 study showed that in Al aska

direct jobs have the potential to bring in $19 mllion, with 95
jobs, from 2015-2017, and increase from there to $112 mllion,
with 141 jobs to 2025. She thanked the University of Al aska for
its work and participation with the task force, as well as in
the community and around the state.

9:37: 22 AM

CHAIR LYNN reiterated that he woul d keep public testinony open.
9:37:55 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 255 was hel d over.

9:38: 51 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:39
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 28, 2014



